
Scrutiny Standing  
Panel Agenda 

1 

 
 
 
 
Environmental and Planning Services Standing Scrutiny 
Panel 
Monday, 26th June, 2006 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Z Folley - Research and Democratic Services 
Tel: 01992 564532 Email: zfolley@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors Mrs P Smith (Chairman), D Kelly (Vice-Chairman), D Bateman, Mrs D Borton, 
Mrs A Cooper, D Jacobs, A Lee, G Mohindra, Mrs P Richardson, Mrs L Wagland and 
J Wyatt 
 
 
 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS TO ATTEND 

 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services)  To report the appointment of any 
substitute members for the meeting. 
 

 3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services). To declare interests in any items on the 
agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 

 



Environmental and Planning Services Standing Scrutiny Panel Monday, 26 June 2006 
 

2 

Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 4. NOTES OF LAST MEETING - 13 APRIL 2006  (Pages 5 - 8) 
 

  Attached.  
 

 5. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 9 - 12) 
 

  (Chairman/Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the Terms 
of Reference of this Panel and associated Work Programme. This is attached. The 
Panel are asked at each meeting to review both documents. 
 
The OSC has asked the Panel to review policy on wheeled bins and the recycling of 
aluminium foil. A form on this is attached. The Panel now needs to consider how this 
is to be undertaken. 
 

 6. NEIGHBOURHOOD WARDENS - DISCUSSION WITH POLICE AND EASTERN 
WARDEN RESOURCE CENTRE  (Pages 13 - 52) 

 
  Recommendation: 

 
To receive a presentation from Inspector Glenn Mayes of Essex Police and Ms 
Jane Brooker - Wood of the Eastern Warden Resource Centre on the 
Neighbourhood Warden initiative.  
 

(Joint Chief Executive Community/Head of Environmental Services). Members will 
recall that the Panel has previously considered the implications of the Clean 
Neighbourhood and Environment Act 2005 and the linked issue of Fixed Penalty 
Notices. This discussion has particularly focused on whether a Neighbourhood 
Warden Service should be implemented in the District and the measures they may 
carry out.  
 
As requested at the last meeting on 13 April 2006, Glenn Mayes of Essex Police has 
been invited to this meeting to discuss Police experience with Neighbourhood 
Wardens, the scheme generally and any views that they may have on the Council 
employing wardens. His presentation will also report on the issue of Fixed Penalty 
Notices, the work of Community Police Support Offices and whether they could be 
used to issue notices and how such arrangements might work.  
 
To report a further perspective, Ms Jane Brooker – Wood will be in attendance to 
advise on the views of the Eastern Warden Resource Centre. She will report 
examples of schemes elsewhere specifically in Essex, successes and failures, lessons 
learnt and some suggestions regarding schemes which may be visited to speak to 
elected Members and Officers, the Wardens themselves and local residents.  
 
This session is designed to provide an insight into the issues and an opportunity to 
ask questions.  
 
To support the above, attached is a report and scrutiny request form submitted by 
Councillor Mrs J Whitehouse. Also enclosed is background information on the 
Neighbourhood Warden Scheme. This information was circulated with the April 2006 



Environmental and Planning Services Standing Scrutiny Panel Monday, 26 June 2006 
 

3 

agenda however has been reproduced for the benefit of those Members who are new 
to this Panel.  
 
A copy of the related consultation document for the Clean Neighbourhood and 
Environment Act 2005 which was considered by the Panel in December of last year is 
available in the Members Room to place the review in context. 
 

 7. WEST ESSEX AREA WASTE MANAGEMENT JOINT COMMITTEE - DECISION 
SUMMARIES  (Pages 53 - 56) 

 
  To consider the attached decision summaries for the meetings of the Joint Committee 

held on 26 April and 31 May 2006. 
 

 8. RE - USE OF BUILDINGS IN GREEN BELT.   
 

  To consider the information to follow. 
 

 9. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 
  To consider which reports are ready to be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee at its next meeting. 
 

 10. FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

  The next meeting of the Panel will be held on 29 August 2006 at 7.30 pm in 
Committee Room 1 and then on 30 October, 19 December 2006, 26 February and 26 
April 2007. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND PLANNING SERVICES STANDING 

SCRUTINY PANEL  
HELD ON THURSDAY, 13 APRIL 2006 

IN COMMITTEE ROOM 2, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 
AT 7.30  - 9.50 PM 

Members
Present:

D Stallan (Housing Portfolio Holder) (Chairman), M Woollard (Vice-
Chairman), Mrs D Borton, A Lee, T Richardson, Mrs M Sartin 
(Environmental Protection Portfolio Holder), Mrs P Smith and 
Mrs J H Whitehouse 

Other members 
present:

(none)

Apologies for 
Absence:

Mrs M Boatman and P McMillan 

Officers Present J Scott (Joint Chief Executive), J Gilbert (Head of Environmental 
Services), J Preston (Head of Planning and Economic Development), 
Ian White (Senior Planning Officer) and Z Folley (Democratic Services 
Assistant)

Also in 
attendance:

K Lawson (Essex County Council) 

1. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

It was reported that Councillor Mrs J H Whitehouse had been appointed to attend the 
meeting as a substitute for Councillor D Kelly. 

2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

There were no declarations of interests made pursuant to the Council’s Code of 
Member Conduct.  

3. NOTES OF THE LAST MEETINGS - 28 FEBRUARY AND 28 MARCH 2006  

Agreed.

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE / WORK PROGRAMME  

The Panel were invited to allocate reporting deadlines where required to their work 
programme for the forthcoming year. Agreed the following deadlines be ascribed: 

(item 5) Provision of Uniformed Wardens – September 2006 

(Item 6) Traveller Policy – Ongoing  

(Item 7) Planning Performance – monitoring of enforcement figures outcome – 
Ongoing

(item 3) Re use of buildings in Green Belt – decision deferred pending receipt 
of further information at next meeting.

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



Environmental and Planning Services Standing Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 13 April 2006 

2

Noted that information on Planning Performance would be reported in the Members 
Bulletin on a regular basis.  

ACTION:

Democratic Services Assistant to update work programme. 

5. RE USE OF BUILDINGS  IN THE GREEN BELT - PRESENTATION  

The Chairman introduced and welcomed Keith Lawson from Essex County Council 
who was in attendance to discuss policies for the reuse of farm buildings in the 
countryside and steps to ensure development in such areas was sustainable.  

Mr Lawson referred to a recent newspaper article reporting action taken by residents 
in Broxbourne relating to the subject of the review and advised that the Area Office 
might offer to undertake work on the issues. He also reported that: 

(a) County Planning Officers/the Essex Planning Officer Association had carried 
out a study in response to central government efforts to encourage the 
diversification of farms. The study produced 12 years ago, explored planning, 
highways and environmental issues in view of the need to establish a county 
wide approach. 

(b) Commercial vehicle activity around farm buildings had increased arising from 
the increased economic activity in rural communities. There was a need to 
establish clear reasons for any actions to deal with the issues associated with 
such activities which was difficult to regulate.  

(c) The Council received a list of applications seeking changes to goods vehicle 
operators licenses which the District could made representations against if 
deemed necessary.

Mr Lawson reported a number of options for addressing the issues in the District: 

(d) The Panel could choose to update the County study/adapt it to suit local 
circumstances  as it was still relevant.  

(e) Should the Panel wish to address specific site related issues such as those 
identified in the Nazeing/Roydon area, they might wish to undertake a study 
to scope to problems in the first instance.  

The Principal Planning Officer reported that between 1 April 2001 and 31 March 
2006, 146 applications had been submitted for change of use in rural areas. Only 6 of 
these related to sites in Nazeing. A further 5 concerned Roydon. The Head of 
Planning and Economic Development reported information indicating that the 
majority of cases for change of use was for residential development rather than 
commercial activity. He suggested that this information might not provide enough 
evidence to suggest that issues around the conversion of farm houses for business 
purposes was a growing significant trend and required a change in policy.  

Agreed that further information be obtained on how many of the 146 consents 
reported had been taken up and the nature of them in particularly their size and 
whether they were for commercial purposes. Agreed that this also detail businesses 
operating without consent/breaches of planning conditions and cover the last 10-15 

Page 6



Environmental and Planning Services Standing Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 13 April 2006 

3

years. The Head of Planning and Economic Development/Principal Planning Officer 
undertook to collate this more specific information for the next meeting in June 2006. 

A Councillor undertook to undertake her own research on problems concerning 
vehicle activity in the Nazeing area and report back to the next meeting. It was also 
agreed that the County study be made available for the next meeting. 

Noted the benefits of carrying out a desktop study to identify the key issues regarding 
business activity in Nazeing and Roydon, for example concerning 
glasshouses/package houses, transport links, implications of the expanding industrial 
base of Broxbourne, issues generated by sites on which redundant agricultural 
buildings had been converted for use. Mr Lawson advised that the investigation might 
also seek information on the number of employees serving the businesses 
concerned, impact of conversions on ‘areas of stress’ and unauthorised sites. Feed 
back could be obtained from the Parishes. 

Agreed that further consideration be given to the review at the next meeting following 
the receipt and consideration of the detailed information requested at this meeting. 

ACTION:

Head of Planning and Economic Development/Principal Planning Officer to produce 
report for the next meeting in June 2006 and make available the Essex Planning 
Officer Association study. 

6. WEST ESSEX AREA WASTE MANAGEMENT JOINT COMMITTEE - MINUTES OF 
THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 22 FEBRUARY 2006.  

The Panel considered a summary of the decisions taken at the meeting of the Joint 
Committee held on 22 February 2006. 

The Head of Environmental Services drew attention to the progress to date with the 
system design approach.  

7. REVIEW OF ENGLAND'S WASTE STRATEGY  

Members noted that following the discussions at the last meeting of the Panel, 
officers had formulated responses to the questions identified in the consultation 
document. The Head of Environmental Services invited Members to consider each 
response with a view to incorporating any changes made and submitting them to the 
consultation by the deadline of 9 May 2006. The following comments were made: 

Agreed that the response to question 2 state that this matter was best dealt with by 
disposal authority. 

Agreed that it be made clear that the response to Question 7 covered question 6 as 
well.

Agreed that the word ‘results’ substitute ‘affects’ in the answer to Question 9. 

Agreed that Question 10 refer to the attitude of many residents towards managing 
household waste. 

Page 7



Environmental and Planning Services Standing Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 13 April 2006 

4

Agreed that the response to Question 29 have regard to the desire to see an 
increase in the amount of commercial waste recycled and that consideration would 
need to be given to how such waste was managed carefully. 

ACTION:

Head of Environmental Services to amend the responses as indicated. 

Responses as amended to be placed in the Members Bulletin for comment prior to 
submission. 

8. NEIGHBOURHOOD/COMMUNITY WARDENS  

The Panel considered information on Community/Neighbourhood Wardens in 
connection with the review to be undertaken on this subject. Noted that Councillor 
Mrs J Whitehouse had agreed to produce a report for the next meeting in June 2006.  

Agreed that Glenn Mayes of Essex Police and a representative from the Eastern 
Warden Resource Service be invited to the next meeting.

Agreed that an officer report be submitted on existing powers.  

Noted that the Panel might wish in the new year to set up an informal smaller sub-
group to undertake fact finding visits which would be open to any Member who 
wished to attend. Noted the need to formulate a work plan with a deadline of 
September 2006 for the 2007/08 budget.  

Agreed that a general invitation to the next Panel meeting be placed in the Members 
Bulletin nearer the time. 

9. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

There were no reports to be made to the next meeting of the OSC on 25 May 2006.  

10. LAST MEETING OF THE YEAR  

The Chairman thanked the members of the Panel for their regular attendance at its 
meetings over the last year and contribution to the discussions. He also thanked the 
officers involved in supporting the meetings for all their hard work and looked forward 
to the forthcoming year. 

11. FUTURE MEETINGS  

Noted that the next meeting of the Panel would be held on 26 June at 7.30p.m in 
Committee Room 1. 

Page 8



E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l a
nd

 P
la

nn
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
ta

nd
in

g 
P

an
el

 
A

s 
at

 2
6 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
 

(1
) E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
y 

Jo
in

t W
as

te
 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t P
ro

ce
ss

 
O

ng
oi

ng
  

U
nd

er
w

ay
 –

 P
an

el
 to

 re
ce

iv
e 

m
in

ut
es

 o
f t

he
 J

oi
nt

 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

s 
an

d 
w

he
n 

th
ey

 b
ec

om
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
 

(2
) N

ew
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
S

ch
em

e 
 

O
ng

oi
ng

  
 

(3
) 

R
e 

us
e 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 in
 th

e 
G

re
en

 B
el

t –
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

tu
dy

 o
n 

ve
hi

cl
e 

m
ov

em
en

ts
   

TB
A

 
H

is
to

ric
al

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 d

ea
lt 

w
ith

 fo
r c

ha
ng

e 
of

 u
se

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 is

su
es

 to
 b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 th
is

 m
tg

.  

(4
) E

as
t o

f E
ng

la
nd

 P
la

n 
 

O
ng

oi
ng

  
U

nd
er

w
ay

: P
an

el
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

E
xa

m
in

at
io

n 
in

 
P

ub
lic

 
(5

) P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f U
ni

fo
rm

ed
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 W

ar
de

ns
  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

00
6.

 
E

ss
ex

 P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 R

en
ew

al
 U

ni
t t

o 
at

te
nd

 
th

is
 m

ee
tin

g 
to

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
  

 
(6

) T
ra

ve
lle

r I
ss

ue
s 

 
O

ng
oi

ng
  

N
ew

 it
em

 fo
r P

an
el

 –
 a

dd
ed

 b
y 

O
S

C
 o

n 
16

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

(7
) P

la
nn

in
g 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 –
  

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
fig

ur
es

/o
ut

co
m

es
 

O
ng

oi
ng

  
N

ew
 it

em
 –

 a
dd

ed
 b

y 
O

S
C

 o
n 

16
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 

(8
) R

ev
ie

w
 o

f P
ol

ic
y 

on
 W

he
el

ed
 

B
in

s 
an

d 
th

e 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

of
 

al
um

in
iu

m
 fo

il.
   

 
A

llo
ca

te
d 

to
 P

an
el

 b
y 

O
SC

 o
n 

25
 M

ay
 2

00
6 

N
ex

t m
tg

s:
 2

9 
A

ug
us

t, 
30

 O
ct

ob
er

, 
19

 D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6,
 

26
 F

eb
ru

ar
y,

 2
6 

A
pr

il 
20

07
. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Request by Member for Scrutiny Review 
 
 
 
 
 

Please complete the form below to request consideration of your issue by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
Proposers Name: 
 
Councillor S Metcalfe 

Date of Request 
 
24 April 2006  

Supporting Councillors (if any): 
 
Councillor D Stallan and the majority of members of the Council as a result of 
adopting a motion at the Council meeting on 24 April 2006 (Minute 93(b)). 
 
Summary of Issue you wish to be scrutinised: 
 
 
A review of the current policy of issuing wheeled bins for refuse collection, 
including consideration of the recycling of aluminium foil. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTE: ENTRIES BELOW RELATE TO ISSUE CATEGORIES OF THE PICK 
PROCESS. PLEASE REFER TO THE EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THIS FORM 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION 
Public Interest Justification: 
 
There is considerable public concern about the size of the standard wheeled 
bin being delivered to residents. Many residents are stating that they are 
recycling as much as possible but continue to have too much residual waste 
top fit into the 180 litre wheeled bin. Account should be taken of the views 
being expressed rather than simply continuing to issue this size of bin. 
 
 The review should include consideration of the introduction of recycling of 
aluminium foil which if achieved would be likely to reduce substantially the 
amount of residual waste. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
Impact on the social, economic and environmental well-being of the area: 
 
Excess residual waste results in side waste which is detrimental to the 
amenities of an area and a potential health hazard. 
 
Recycling of aluminium foil will improve the Council’s performance and is 
likely to impact on the standard size of wheeled bin. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council Performance in this area (if known: Red, Amber, Green): 
 
 
The level of recycling in those parts of the District in which wheeled bins have 
been introduced has been increased significantly. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Keep in Context (are other reviews taking place in this area?) 
 
 
No 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Office Use: 
Pick score:  Considered By OSCC: 
 

Page 12



Report to Environmental and Planning Services Standing 
Panel  
 
Date of meeting: 26 June 2006 
 
Report by Cllr Mrs J. Whitehouse  
 
Subject:  Community/Neighbourhood Wardens 
 
 
 
During the years I have been a district councillor for Epping I have received many complaints 
about litter, pavement parking and dog fouling.  I have taken these up with the relevant 
officers and with the police but they reoccur. 
 
When I heard that the parking contract would be coming up for review it seemed an 
opportunity to consider if the responsibilities of the parking wardens could be widened to 
include dealing with litter, pavement parking and dog fouling so transforming the parking 
wardens into community wardens.  However, I was told that the parking wardens could deal 
only with parking.  This led on to the need to consider other ways of dealing with the litter, 
pavement parking and dog fouling. 
 
Since I first discussed my idea of community wardens the Clean Neighbourhoods and 
Environment Act 2005 has come into effect.  This provides for fixed penalty notices for a wide 
range of offences. These can be issued by authorised employees of various local authorities 
including parish councils and by Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs).  The 
Government expects that local authorities will use these powers.  
 
This panel needs to decide which powers should be enforced by the Council’s existing 
officers and to discuss with the police which powers the PCSOs will enforce. The panel may 
decide that new officers, possibly called community wardens, should be employed to enforce 
all or some of the powers.  If new officers are employed there will be budget implications.  
 
Many local authorities have community/neighbourhood  wardens.  Research carried out in 
2001-2003 on behalf of the ODPM’s Neighbourhood Renewal Unit concluded that ‘in 
successful schemes wardens can and are having an impact’.  The research also showed that 
successful schemes have a number of common features.  These included resident 
participation and the involvement of a wide range of stakeholders, active and representative 
steering group, high quality wardens with high visibility, and consistent scheme management.  
 
The aim of this task for this scrutiny panel is to find a way to give the residents of Epping 
Forest a cleaner, safer, more attractive environment.  This may be by the introduction of 
community wardens or through alternative methods.  My request to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for a scrutiny review is attached for information. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Request by Member for Scrutiny Review 
 
Proposer’s Name :  Janet Whitehouse Date of request: 21/9/05 
 
Supporting Councillors: Jon Whitehouse, Bob Goold, Fergus Maclaine 
 

              Summary of issue to be scrutinised 
The provision of uniformed neighbourhood wardens to help keep the district’s 
streets cleaner and safer. 
 
The contract with Vinci Park will soon be due for reconsideration and members 
should have an input into this.  That contract deals only with the enforcement 
of parking.  We think the council needs wardens with wider enforcement 
powers to deal with parking on pavements, litter, flyposting, etc.  I understand 
that there are a number of such powers which councils can choose to exercise.   
 
We would like a panel to look at the possible powers and recommend to 
Cabinet which EFDC should take, possibly by employing neighbourhood 
wardens in place of exclusively parking wardens.  This would probably involve 
a reduction in time spent on parking enforcement in order to include the new 
powers – or there may be other ways. 
 
 
Public interest justification 
Residents, especially those in mobility vehicles or with prams, have 
complained about vehicles parked on the pavement and blocking pedestrian 
access.  The police are not willing to deal with this and have told me that 
councils have powers to do so. 
 
Cllr Jon Whitehouse and I receive frequent complaints about litter and dog 
fouling in Epping. 
 
Research has shown that the presence of uniformed wardens make residents 
feel safer. 
 
 
Impact on the social, economic and environmental well-being of the area 
The result of the wardens’ work should be a cleaner, more attractive district 
which would be more likely to satisfy residents and attract visitors and 
businesses to the area. 
 
Unimpeded access along footpaths would also help the independence of elderly 
or disabled people.  I know of at least one person who has lost confidence in 
going out in his mobility vehicle after an incident involving the pavement being 
blocked. 
 
 
Council performance in this area 
Performance is not known but this topic relates to the Epping Forest District 
Community Strategy as follows – 
 
 
 
 Page 15



 
Green and Unique – Improve the cleanliness of our streets and open spaces 
and encourage a culture that does not tolerate litter. 
 
A Safe Community – Ensure that high visibility uniformed patrols, including 
police officers, Community Support Officers and other uniformed officials such 
as forest rangers, are regularly present on the streets and other public spaces. 
 
It also relates to the Epping Forest Best Value Performance Plan 2005/6 as 
follows – 
 
Medium Term Priorities –  
(a)  To maintain the special character and advantage of the district, and address 
local environmental issues 
(c) To create safer communities.  

 
Street scene (p12)  We recognise that our residents would like to see a cleaner 
environment in our towns, villages and countryside.  The Government is 
proposing changes to the law which should enable councils to do more to 
control litter and fly-tipping.   
 
BVPI 199 relevant but not yet available 
 
 
Keep in context  
No other reviews relevant to this issue are known. 
 
 
 
For office use: 
Pick score:     Considered by OSCC: 
 

Page 16



Report to Environmental and Planning Services 
Scrutiny Standing Panel  
 
Date of meeting: 13 April 2006 
  
Subject:  Neighbourhood/Community Wardens 
 
Officer contact:  John Scott (Joint Chief Executive (Community) (ext4050) 
John Gilbert (Head of Environmental Services) (ext 4062) 
 
Committee Secretary:  Zoe Folley 4532 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
(1) To note the attached information on Neighbourhood/Community Wardens; 
 
(2) To  agree the steps to be undertaken to determine the review including the 
suggestion to: 
 
(a) delegate the topic to a smaller sub group of the Panel’s Membership for 
consideration; 
 
(b) pursue discussions with the Police and the Eastern Warden Resource 
Committee including fact finding visits;  
 
(c)   formulate a work plan with a  completion date of September 2006 for the 
2007/08 Budget.  
 
Introduction 
 
1. (Joint Chief Executive (Community)/(Head of Environmental Services). In considering 

matters in relation to the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005, the 
Scrutiny Panel has requested information to enable them to consider issues around 
the provision of uniformed Neighbourhood/Community Wardens. 

 
2. Councillor Mrs Whitehouse has offered to prepare a paper for the Scrutiny Panel 

setting out her ambitions in relation to this topic. 
 
3. Information has been put together to introduce the topic and enable Members to plan 

how they wish to carry out the investigation.  The papers are: 
 

• Appendix 1 – A briefing note prepared by the Government Office for the East 
of England (GO East) which sets out some brief explanations around the 
Warden concept. 

 
• Appendix 2 – A research summary issued by the ODPM which sets out the 

keys lessons and findings from a national evaluation of the Neighbourhood 
Warden’s Programme. 

 
• Appendix  3 – A statement of fundamental principles issued by the 

Association of Chief Police Officers of England, Wales and Northern Ireland 
(ACPO). 

 
• Appendix 4 - Copy of a speech given by Jim Fitzpatrick (a Government 

Minister) on 13 February 2006. 
 

Page 17



• Appendix 5 - Copy of a newsletter issued by the ODPM in February 2006; 
and 

 
• Appendix 6 – Page 126-135 from the draft guidance on the Clean 

Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 which deal with fixed penalty 
notices. 

 
Fixed Penalty Notices 
 

4. The Council has yet to decide whether it wishes to use these new powers and if 
so the circumstances in which the powers are to be used.  Ben Bradshaw, the 
Environmental Quality Minister in a recent speech to the Keep Britain Tidy 
conference, expressed concern about Local Authorities “failing to use powers 
given to them in the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act”, that 40% of 
fixed penalty notices (FPNs) for environmental crimes issued in 2004/05 have 
never been paid and said “far too many local authorities are treating FPNs as 
some kind of voluntary pricing scheme”.  The Minister reminded Councils that 
extended powers should be taken seriously, particularly as they asked for them in 
the first place. 

 
Enforcement 
 

5. Whatever recommendations the Panel wishes to put forward, it will be seen from 
Appendix 6 that some of the Fixed Penalty Notices can be issued by Police 
Community Support Officers.  There are twenty Police Community Support 
Officers operational in the Epping Forest District at the current time of which six 
are part funded by the District Council (£90,000 per annum).  The Service Level 
Agreement provides for those officers to issue FPNs on behalf of the Council and 
the Panel may wish to meet with Police Management to see what arrangements 
can be agreed. 

 
Eastern Warden Resource Centre 
 
6. The Eastern Warden Resource Centre is based in Thurrock and was set up in 

2004 with funding from the ODPM for its first year of operation.  The Centre has 
recently submitted its business plan to Government which sets out its proposals to 
be a fully sustainable facility by 2009.  It plans to achieve this largely via the sale 
of commercial training schemes to support the Warden Service. 

 
7. The Centre is able to arrange various support processes and has offered to meet 

with the Panel if Members so wish.  Their Director, Jane Brooker-Wood says she 
can arrange to take Members though the different Warden formats that exist in the 
Eastern Region, visits to existing schemes, specialist presentations, training 
processes and invites to their Steering Group or Network meetings. 

 
Conclusions 
 
8. The Panel is invited to consider the information supplied and decide how it wishes 

to take this work forward.  The Panel may wish to take forward the project itself or 
to delegate the task to a smaller group of its Membership.  If the Panel wishes to 
pursue the idea of discussions with the Police and the Eastern Warden Resource 
Committee then a timetable and work plan will need to be established. 

 
Resources 
 
9. No resources have been provided for within the Council’s budget for 2006/07.  

Therefore if Members wish to put forward any recommendations which will need 
funding, the Panel should aim to report by the end of September in time for the 
budget round for 2007/08. 

Page 18



 

Page 19



 

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 

NEIGHBOURHOOD WARDEN 
SCHEME 
Checked against delivery 

1. To my mind, neighbourhood wardens sum up what it means to build safer 
and stronger communities. And that goes a long way towards making them 
sustainable. They can make neighbourhoods places where people want to 
live and enjoy living. 
 
2. Neighbourhood wardens have been a great success story so far. They are 
popular with residents, with local agencies and partners, and with elected 
members. In fact, a quarter of residents are more content with their 
neighbourhoods when there are wardens. Independent evaluation found that 
there was a 28 per cent reduction in crime and 10 per cent reduction in the 
fear of street robberies in areas with wardens.  
 
3. As many of you know a quarter of our pilot programme was led by Housing 
Associations. Well over 80 per cent of the pilot schemes have carried on, and 
expanded, since pilot funding ended. That is a clear indication of how much 
they are valued. 
 
4. Those are some of the facts and figures. Of course warden schemes are 
much more than that. Many wardens are using their knowledge and 
understanding of their patch to improve their communities in other ways. They 
are keeping people informed, getting people involved in community activities 
and generally acting as the catalyst for residents to help change their 
neighbourhood. They are dealing with small problems and larger problems on 
the street. They are bringing people together and helping very vulnerable 
groups. 
 
5. There are lots of examples of good practice emerging. You will be seeing 
some of these later and I hope you will take the opportunity of talking to 
colleagues from Southwark, Camden and Thamesmead for example, about 
what is going on in their neighbourhoods. 
 
6. At the end of March the pilot warden programmes come to an end. The 
benefits are clear and I believe we must spread this approach. The 
Government will still support wardens through the neighbourhood part of the 
Safer and Stronger Communities Fund within Local Area Agreements. The 
other way we will provide support is through regional warden resource 
centres. 
 
7. There are three in London at the moment – in Camden, Southwark and 
Merton – and one just outside in Thurrock covering the Thames Gateway 
area. They can help design and manage warden services, set up sharing 

Page 35



arrangements, organise study visits – you'll be hearing more about those 
later, give funding advice and so on.  
8. An important part of their work is providing training for wardens and warden 
managers. This comes in a variety of forms including a range of free support 
materials and the assessment and verification of NVQ level 2 for wardens. 
9. In many areas the problem is not winning people like you over to the idea of 
wardens, it is in recruiting people to be wardens. Southwark I know is having 
difficulty recruiting fast enough. 
 
10. Perhaps one solution is to look at attracting young people into the job. 
Tameside in the North West region, for example, is running an apprenticeship 
scheme. Young people are given an opportunity to experience various 
different jobs around the council and within local partners, including as 
wardens. They receive an apprentice wage during their two-year training. 
Whatever direction they chose to go in, they know more about all the other 
jobs that are done by many people with years of experience in one area.  
 
11. Modern apprenticeships are another way of opening the door to local 
young people who might think of becoming a warden. We are hoping to pilot 
these in the near future. For even younger people there are examples around 
the country of junior warden schemes. Some have been on 'grumble walks', 
finding out what is really bothering or worrying people locally, and doing what 
they can to help. This encourages good junior citizenship and is the kind of 
involvement and engagement that is vital for the long-term health of our 
communities. 
 
12. It makes sense too when you consider that in neighbourhood renewal 
areas there tend to be more people aged under 24 than in the population as a 
whole. Around 40 per cent are in this age group. 
 
13. As well as 'thinking wardens' at the early stages of career choices, we 
also need to persuade people to 'think wardens' at the early stages of major 
developments. Here in London we have several but around the Thames 
Gateway and the plans for the Olympics there are some great opportunities to 
factor in wardens near the beginning. In the five Olympic boroughs there are 
already 70 wardens. 
 
14. The wardens are in a good position to keep local communities up to date 
with what is happening, to encourage young people to help build the Olympic 
legacy and to keep an eye on half-built and empty buildings. When the 
building is finished or the Olympic village is converted to housing, for 
example, the wardens are already in place and familiar with the locality. This 
is, and will be, a real plus both for people coming to the area as well as for 
developers and landlords with property there.  
 
15. We recognise and indeed applaud the role social landlords play in 
preventing and tackling anti-social behaviour. Many are working closely with 
warden schemes and some are already sponsoring schemes. A recent survey 
for the Housing Corporation by MORI showed that nearly three-quarters [74 
per cent] felt that wardens were the best response to anti-social behaviour. 

Page 36



 
16. We are introducing a new Respect Standard for housing management. 
We will develop this with the sector. It will establish a benchmark of effective 
performance in tackling anti-social behaviour quickly and effectively. This is 
the assurance every tenant wants. We will encourage landlords to sign up and 
we see wardens playing an important role in supporting this standard. They 
can do this not only by enforcing measures to stop antisocial behaviour – and 
they can do that. But also by making the links between people of different 
ages and of different backgrounds. This is where mutual respect begins to 
take root.  
 
17. Wardens have other advantages to offer social landlords. They can take 
care of tenants and the housing stock by reducing damage, removing graffiti 
and reporting what needs to be done quickly. This can result in efficiency 
savings for Housing Associations. 
 
18. Wardens are a win:win:win all round. They are really making a difference 
and improving the quality of places and people's lives. They are building 
confidence, building relationships and building a future for our communities. 

Speech by Jim Fitzpatrick on 13 February 2006 

 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39



Page 40



 

Page 41



 

Page 42



Appendix 6 

Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



 

Page 52



Drafted: 2/5/06  26 April 2006 

 

SUMMARY OF DECISIONS TAKEN AT A MEETING OF THE 
WEST ESSEX AREA WASTE MANAGEMENT JOINT 
COMMITTEE HELD AT  COUNTY HALL, CHELMSFORD ON  
26 APRIL 2006 

 
Present:- 
 
Members & Substitute Members 
 
 Councillor Tony Sleep, Brentwood Borough Council (Chairman) 
 Councillor Roger Walters, Essex County Council  
 Councillor Michael Gage, Braintree District Council  
 Councillor Derek Jacobs, Epping Forest District Council  
 Councillor Alan Thawley, Uttlesford District Council 
 
Officers 
 
 Ron Pridham, Uttlesford District Council 
 Kathy May, Harlow District Council (attending on behalf of S Presland) 
 Ian Haines, Braintree District Council  
 Brian Lawrence, Brentwood Borough Council 
 Peter Kelsbie, Essex County Council 
 Alex Creecy, Essex County Council 
 

1. Project Progress Report  (agenda item 5) 
            
Introduction 
 
Referring to paper WEWM/09/06, Peter Kelsbie, Project Co-ordinator, Essex 
County Council, provided an update on the latest project progress.  
 
Discussion 
 
It was reiterated that the Outline Business Case (OBC) containing an application 
for PFI credits had been submitted to Defra, as planned, in December 2005.  The 
OBC had been constructed with reference to contemporary guidance issued by 
the 4Ps.  However, it was noted that the rules governing bids for PFI credits had 
changed on 7 April 2006.  It was explained that Defra had raised some issues 
arising from the OBC and that a meeting would be held in early May 2006 
between representatives from Defra and Essex County Council to discuss these 
issues.  It was suggested and agreed that Councillor Roger Walters, Essex 
County Council, should speak to Graham Tombs, Service Director of 
Environment & Commerce at Essex County Council before this meeting.  It was 
noted that this meeting would be an important element in determining the viability 
of continuing to pursue the PFI credit option.  It was stated that feedback from 
industry would also be vital in considering the most appropriate match between 
the waste strategy and an affordable solution.                      
 
Members noted that Heads of Terms for the purchase of the lease at the 
Courtauld Road site were generally complete with just final legal negotiations 

Agenda Item 7

Page 53



26 April 2006   Drafted: 2/5/06 

 

 

remaining.  Also in connection with Courtauld Road, it was reported that the 
planning application was expected to be submitted in mid-May 2006.   

 
2. Update from the West Essex Area Officers Group (agenda item 7)   

 
Ian Haines, Braintree District Council, provided an update on behalf of the West 
Essex Area Officers Group.  During the course of discussion, reference was 
made to paper WEWM/10/06 which contained initial ideas regarding methods of 
collection, the marketing of recycled materials and how these might inform the 
overall system design to ensure an appropriate interface between collection and 
disposal processes.  It was noted that some decisions regarding collection were 
dependent on the disposal infrastructure and vice versa.    
 
Discussion 
 
It was explained that recent West Essex officer meetings had concentrated on 
assessing different collection methods and the subsequent marketing of materials 
collected for recycling.   
 
It was noted that two collection methods had been considered at the meetings; 
kerbside ‘source separation’ and ‘co-mingled’ (the latter requiring subsequent 
sorting).  It was noted that further work would be required to provide a more 
definitive comparison using a combination of the SWOT analysis and the 
Kerbside Analysis Tool (KAT) modelling results.  At present, (without the KAT 
results), it was explained that both methods were achieving very similar scores 
and that further work would be required to ascertain any differentiation between 
the two systems.     
   
It was suggested and agreed that factors relating to differences between urban 
and rural area (across Essex) needed to be included in future consideration.   

 
 
 
 

Page 54



Drafted: 5/6/06   31 May 2006 

 

 

SUMMARY OF DECISIONS TAKEN AT A MEETING OF THE 
WEST ESSEX AREA WASTE MANAGEMENT JOINT 
COMMITTEE HELD AT  COUNTY HALL, CHELMSFORD ON  
31 MAY 2006 

 
Present:- 
 
Members & Substitute Members 
 
 Councillor Tony Sleep, Brentwood Borough Council (Chairman) 
 Councillor Roger Walters, Essex County Council 
 Councillor Michael Gage, Braintree District Council  
 Councillor Stephen Metcalfe, Epping Forest District Council  
 Councillor Alan Thawley, Uttlesford District Council 
 Councillor Mrs Sarah Courage, Brentwood Borough Council  
 
Officers 
 
 John Gilbert, Epping Forest District Council 
 Ron Pridham, Uttlesford District Council 
 Kathy May, Harlow District Council 
 Ian Haines, Braintree District Council  
 Brian Lawrence, Brentwood Borough Council 
 Nicola Beach, Essex County Council 
 Peter Kelsbie, Essex County Council 
 Alex Creecy, Essex County Council 
 Melanie Clark, Essex County Council 
 Melanie Bailey, Essex County Council 
 Buky Awoyemi, Essex County Council 
 

1. Apologies for Absence and Notices of Substitution (agenda item 1) 
 

On behalf of the Joint Committee the Chairman welcomed Councillor Stephen 
Metcalfe as the new Member representing Epping Forest District Council and, in 
absentia, Councillor Mrs Mary Sartin (new Substitute Member for Epping Forest 
District Council).  A vote of thanks was made to Councillor Derek Jacobs for his 
work as a previous Member and Vice-Chairman of the Joint Committee.    
 

2. Project Progress Report (agenda item 5) 
            
Referring to paper WEWM/11/06, Peter Kelsbie, Project Co-ordinator, Essex 
County Council, provided an update on the latest project progress.   
 
It was stated that, since the last meeting of the West Essex Joint Committee, 
there had been a meeting between representatives from Essex County Council, 
Southend Borough Council and Defra regarding the Outline Business Case 
(OBC) and Defra’s revised eligibility criteria for PFI.  It was explained that these 
criteria focussed on the overall structure of the contract and the associated 
regulatory framework.  Members heard that the new criteria, issued by Defra, 
meant that funding would be available for the waste plants themselves (e.g MBT) 
but not including the supporting infrastructure.  However, as a caveat to this, 

Page 55



31 May 2006  Drafted: 5/6/06 

 

there was a clause in the new regulations stating that Defra might consider other 
supporting elements.  With this in mind, discussions between Essex County 
Council, Southend Borough Council and Defra were continuing regarding the 
inclusion of transfer stations, MRFs and IVCs within the overall contract.   
 
It was noted that the issues relating to the OBC, (as a result of changes to the 
contract criteria), did not relate to the funding per se which remained at the same 
level.  It was clarified that the OBC had not been rejected by Defra.  However, 
variations to the rules governing bids required the OBC to be refined to 
accommodate these changes.      
 

3. Procurement Process (agenda item 6) 
 

Referring to paper WEWM/12/06, Peter Kelsbie, Project Co-ordinator and Alex 
Creecy, Technical Manager, Waste & Recycling, Essex County Council, outlined 
various aspects of the revised procurement process.  

 
The Joint Committee received a presentation on different aspects of the revised 
procurement process including options surrounding the selection of a 
procurement route, inclusion of different elements of the disposal treatment 
process and possible groupings into contract ‘lots’.     
  
The arguments relating to the different aspects of procurement (particularly in 
relation to their inclusion or otherwise within the main PFI procurement) were 
summarised.  Members expressed their support for the various arguments and 
proposals made although it was noted that formal approval of the overall 
procurement strategy by the Joint Committee would be sought once the situation 
regarding Defra was clarified.             

 
4. Dates of Meetings: 2006 – 2007 (agenda item 9) 
 

The Secretary introduced a paper (WEWM/13/06) containing proposed dates for 
meetings of the Joint Committee from August 2006 to July 2007.  It was 
explained that, following presentation at a previous meeting of the Joint 
Committee, the suggested dates for future meetings had been revised to take 
account of comments received at the time.  There was a brief discussion 
concerning the proposed date of the September 2006 meeting date and it was 
agreed that the Secretary would look into this further.      
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 56


